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LITIGATION DIVISION

Provides legal representation to the state, its officers, 
agents, employees, boards, and commissions in all 
tort claims seeking damages.



When will the Attorney General 
assume representation in a risk 

litigation case?

• When a covered individual requests 
indemnification and representation pursuant 
to La. R.S. 13:5108.1(B)

• The request is sent to the Attorney General 
within 10 days of the time the covered 
individual is served with any summons, 
complaint, process, notice, demand or 
pleading.



Who is a “covered individual” for 
purposes of risk litigation?

La. R.S. 13:5108.1 (E) -An official, officer, or 
employee holding office or employment in one of 
the following:

• executive branch of state government; 
• legislative branch of state government;
• state supreme court, circuit courts of appeal, or in 

any of the family, juvenile, or judicial district courts 
of the state or in the offices of the judicial 
administrators thereof;

• in one of the deep-water ports, deep-water port 
commissions, or deep-water port, harbor, and 
terminal districts.



Who is a “covered individual” for 
purposes of risk litigation (cont.)?

A physician or dentist who either contracts
with or provides services on behalf of the state
or any of its departments, whether
compensated or not.



Who is not a “covered individual” for 
purposes of risk litigation? 

La. R.S. 13:5108.1 (E) (3) -An official, officer, 
or employee of a municipality, ward, parish, special 
district, including without limitation a levee district, 
school board, parish law enforcement district, or any 
other political subdivision or local authority other 
than a deep-water port, deep-water port commission, 
or deep-water port, harbor, or terminal district whose 
functions have not been transferred to a state 
department or office or agency thereof.



Who is not a “covered individual”  for 
purposes of risk litigation (cont.)? 

District attorneys, sheriffs, assessors, clerks of 
district courts, coroners, justices of the peace, 
constables, mayor’s courts, city courts, marshals, nor 
the officials, officers, or employees thereof.



Representative Litigation Cases



Thea M. Smith, et al vs. Joshua J. 
Landry, et al., 16th JDC, Docket No. 

23053
This was a lawsuit filed due to a motor vehicle accident 
where the Plaintiff’s daughter suffered severe brain damage. 
The suit was against DOTD because the Plaintiffs believed 
that there should have been a left-turn lane in advance of a 
median crossover. The case was assigned to an AAG who 
defended the case through discovery, motion practice, trial 
and appeal. The jury awarded damages totaling $8.5 million 
dollars. The court of appeal reversed the ruling and found no 
fault on behalf of DOTD. The Plaintiffs applied for writs with 
the Louisiana Supreme Court, and United States Supreme 
Court who both denied the writs. 



Zachary D. Relan v. The State of 
Louisiana, et al., 40th JDC, Docket No. 

066434

This was a major motor vehicle accident involving a State 
vehicle where the State was sued for injuries to the Plaintiff 
who suffered a herniated disc and underwent two surgeries. 
The Plaintiff’s settlement demand was over two million 
dollars and the Plaintiff’s attorney asked for over three 
million dollars in closing argument. Defense was assigned to 
in-house AAGs who defended the case through discovery, 
motion practice, and trial. The jury returned a verdict finding 
that the State did not cause the injuries and awarded the 
Plaintiff zero damages.



Risk Litigation Division Contact 

Sonia Mallet
Litigation Director 
(225) 326-6300



Criminal Division 

Assists federal, state, and local agencies in the 
investigation and prosecution of a wide range of 
criminal matters. 



When does the Attorney General 
assume a criminal case?

• La. Const. art. 5, § 26 gives the District Attorney 
original jurisdiction over every criminal 
prosecution by the state in his district.

• La. Code Crim. P. art. 680 provides grounds for 
recusal of the District Attorney. 

• When a District Attorney recuses himself, the case 
ordinarily becomes the responsibility of the 
Attorney General.  The Attorney General assumes 
all powers previously reserved for the respective 
District Attorney.   



Representative Criminal Cases



State v. Stafford, 2017-714 (La. App. 
3rd Cir. 03/07/18), -- So.3d -- 2018 La. 

App. LEXIS 432.
The Attorney General’s office handled this case as a result of
a recusal by the local District Attorney. It involved two
officers of the Marksville Police Department. At the time of
the incident, the Defendant was moonlighting as a City
Marshal. During a traffic dispute, the Defendant opened fire
and killed a six year old child who was sitting in the front
seat. Defendant was found guilty of manslaughter of the child
and attempted manslaughter of the child’s father.



.
State v. Young, 2017-1101 (La.App. 1 
Cir. 12/21/17), 2017 La. App. Unpub. 

LEXIS 398.
The Defendant was charged by bill of information with
computer-aided solicitation of a minor and indecent behavior
with a juvenile. He entered a plea of not guilty and waived
his right to a jury trial. The court found the Defendant guilty
on both counts. The Defendant subsequently filed a motion
for post judgment of acquittal based on double jeopardy. The
Defendant argued that the same act constituted the same
elements of the underlying offenses for his conviction and the
same evidence was used as the basis for both convictions.
The Court granted the Defendant’s motion for post-verdict
judgment of acquittal in part as to the computer-aided
solicitation. The double jeopardy determination was reversed
on appeal, and the conviction on the computer-aided
solicitation was reinstated.



Criminal Division Contact 

Pat Magee
Criminal Director
(225) 326-6200 



Civil (non risk) Division

Provides legal representation to the state, its 
departments and agencies, boards and 
commissions, and statewide elected officials. 



When will the Attorney General 
litigate a civil action?

• Enforcement of the Open Meetings Law;
• Enforcement of  Public Records Law;
• Enforcement of the Bid Law; 
• Defending the constitutionality of a state statute;
• Representing the State, its departments and 

agencies, boards and commissions, and statewide 
elected officials in litigation.   



Representative Civil Cases 



Separation of Powers and 
Executive Overreach 



Louisiana Department of Justice and Jeff
Landry v. Edwards, 17-0173 (La. App. 1. Cir.
11/1/17)
Issue:  This case centers around an Executive Order 
issued by the Governor and challenges the legal 
authority and discretion of two elected officials.  The 
Executive Order expanded the State’s anti-
discrimination policy to include sexual orientation 
and gender identity. 
Held: Governor’s Executive Order is invalid.  It goes 
beyond a mere policy statement or directive to fulfill 
law, because there is no current state or federal law 
outlining anti-discriminatory laws concerning and/or 
defining gender identity. 



Voting Rights Act Cases 



Terrebonne v. Jindal, et al., U.S.D.C. 
(Middle District) 3:14-cv-0069

Issue:  The local branch of the NAACP filed a 
lawsuit challenging the at-large method of electing 
judges to the 32nd JDC.  The Plaintiffs claimed 
violations of Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act of 
1965 along with violations of the 14th and 15th

Amendments. 



Terrebonne (cont.)

Held: Court ruled in favor of the Plaintiffs, finding
violations of the 14th and 15th Amendments as well
as the Voting Rights Act of 1965.

The district court bifurcated the remedy phase of the 
proceeding.  The remedy phase is pending with the 
district court. 



Terrebonne why important?

• Plaintiffs suggest the Constitution and the Voting 
Rights Act of 1965 require the court to identify 
black voters in Terrebonne Parish and group them 
into a separate election sub-district to elect one of 
five judges, institutionalizing racial segregation in 
judicial elections. 

• Plaintiffs are requesting as a remedy Section 3 
bail-in under the Voting Rights Act which would 
make any change to the state’s election laws 
subject to federal preclearance. 

• Case may lead to further examination of Clark v. 
Roemer, which is the case that led to creation of 
minority sub districts for the judiciary. 



Laura Campbell, et al. v. John Bel Edwards, 
et al., U.S.D.C. (Middle District of 
Louisiana), Docket No. 17-cv-1261 

Issue:  The Plaintiffs, minority voters, filed a lawsuit 
challenging the method of electing judges to the 40th JDC.  
The Plaintiffs claimed that the method of electing judges, 
which is by sub-district, violates Section 2 of the Voting 
Rights Act of 1965 as well as the 14th and 15th Amendment of 
the United States Constitution (this is the opposite claim of 
the Terrebonne case) 
Status:  The Plaintiffs moved to dismiss the case, after the AG 
filed an answer asserting its own claim.  The court dismissed 
the case without any type of hearing on the AG’s claims.  A 
motion to alter the judgment of dismissal is pending with the 
court. 



Campbell, why important?

• It demonstrates the problems with minority sub-
districts for the judiciary.  

• The legislation relative to the 40th JDC already 
makes the districts at-large, the sub-districts are 
being operated due to the order issued in Clark
and the only way to change it is to go back to 
court. 

• This case demonstrates that isolating a racial 
group might well result in depriving the group of 
the opportunity to vote for and elect a judge in 
other districts. 



Enforcement of Open Meetings Law



Landry v. Vermillion Parish School 
Board, 15th JDC, Docket No. 104-728 

Issue:  This case involves an enforcement action 
initiated by the Attorney General due to violations of 
the Open Meetings Law that occurred at a school 
board meeting on January 8, 2018.   
Allegations:  The Board effectively denied a full 
opportunity for public comment and bullied and 
intimated those present by among other things, 
securing the removal and arrest of a teacher, through 
an officer acting as agent for the board, as she was 
attempting to comment on an agenda item. 
Status:  Matter scheduled for trial summer of 2018 



Civil Division Contact

Angelique Freel 
Civil Division Director
(225) 326-6000
freela@ag.louisiana.gov

mailto:freela@ag.louisiana.gov


Public Protection Division 

Provides legal services in the areas of consumer 
protection and environmental law, insurance 
receivership, and fair housing. 



Representative Cases 
Public Protection



OPIOID LITIGATION 



Connecticut, et al. v. Aurobindo Pharma 
USA, Inc., et al., No. 17-ev-3768;Arkansas, 
et al. v. Aurobindo Pharma USA, Inc., et al., 
No. 17-ev-3769; 

Issue: The Attorney General filed an amended 
petition in the suit against opioid manufacturers, 
replacing plaintiff, the Louisiana Department of 
Health, with the State of Louisiana. This change 
enables the litigation to encompass all damages 
suffered by the State as a result of the opioid crisis.
Status: Case currently pending in the U.S.D.C. 
(Eastern District of Pennsylvania), attempts are 
being made to move it to the U.S.D.C. (Middle 
District of Louisiana). 



W. Virginia v. Indivior, U.S.D.C. (E. 
Dist. of Penn.) No. 2:16-CV-5073

Issue:  Louisiana is part of a 5-state executive 
committee in this multidistrict litigation on behalf of 
43 states. The suit alleges that the Defendants 
violated state and federal antitrust laws and state 
consumer protection laws when they manipulated the 
market in order to illegally maintain their monopoly 
for co-formulated buprenorphine/naloxone, brand 
name Suboxone.



The suit alleges that in anticipation of generic entry 
to the market, the Defendants conspired to create a 
new formulation that was patent-protected but which 
was not a genuine product improvement. The new 
formulation would prevent automatic generic 
substitution.

Status: The case is pending in the U.S. District Court 
for the Eastern District of Pennsylvania and is 
nearing the end of the fact discovery period.

W. Virginia v. Indivior, U.S.D.C. (E. 
Dist. of Penn.) No. 2:16-CV-5073 (cont.)



Connecticut, et al. v. Aurobindo 
Pharma USA, Inc., et al, No. 3:16-CV-

002056
Issue: Louisiana is part of a multistate suit pending in federal 
court that alleges price fixing and other illegal anticompetitive 
behavior on the part of several drug manufacturers. The 
skyrocketing costs of many generic drugs over the past 
several years is alleged to be caused, in large part, to this 
illegal conduct by many generic drug manufacturers. The suit 
alleges violations of federal and state antitrust laws and state 
consumer protection laws.
Status: An amended complaint is pending approval by the 
U.S.D.C. (Eastern District of Pennsylvania), which would 
expand the suit to encompass additional Defendants and 
additional drugs.



Public Protection Division Contact

Renee Free
Director of Public Protection
(225) 326-6400 



Gaming Division 

Serves as legal advisor and legal representative to all 
Louisiana gaming regulatory agencies. 



Representative Cases Gaming Division 



Anthony R. Thompson - P040043584

A Permittee was revoked based on conspiracy to 
commit fraud and theft of casino funds. It was 
proven through casino video surveillance that the 
permittee, a dealer, was pretending to take chips 
from patrons on losing wagers, then rearranging the 
chips into winning wagers. The patrons would then 
take possession of the chips. The Hearing Officer 
found that the Permittee was in fact guilty and his 
permit was revoked. 



Belle of Baton Rouge, SAR # 17-1-03-
129-3307

An excluded patron received a promotional brochure 
giving him seventy-five dollars ($75.00) of free slot 
play from the Casino. The patron lost his money and 
was unable to make a withdrawal from the ATM.  
He then attempted to complete a transaction at the 
cage where the Cashier identified that he was a self-
excluded patron. He gambled for approximately five 
(5) hours before casino personnel recognized him as 
a person listed on the State of Louisiana Problem 
Gambler Exclusion Database. The Casino was fined 
$15,000.00 for various violations. 



Gaming Division Contact 

Chris Hebert
Director of Gaming
(225) 326-6500



Solicitor General’s Office

Coordinates the involvement of the Attorney 
General’s Office in cases before the United States 
Supreme Court, assists the Louisiana Department of 
Justice in preparing and presenting appellate cases in 
state and federal courts, directly handles select 
appeals, and coordinates the involvement of the 
Attorney General’s Office with Amicus Curiae 
briefs.



Laws Regulating Abortion



June Med. Servs., LLC II v. Gee, et al., 
814 F.3d 319 (5th Cir. 2016)

The AG is currently defending the State of 
Louisiana in the largest abortion challenge 
ever filed in the country. The challenge 
includes seven laws that were passed by the 
Legislature in bipartisan matters and signed 
into law by the Governor in 2016. 



June Med. Servs. (cont.)
Laws Challenged:
• Act 264 – Regulates Abortion by prohibiting dilation and 

evacuation (D&E) without demise.
• Act 563 – Prohibits abortion after 20 weeks when the 

abortion is solely based upon the genetic abnormality of 
the baby. After 20 weeks, requires an informational 
document and contains criminal penalties for failure to 
provide it.

• Act 97 – Extends 24 hour waiting period to 72 hour 
waiting period. 



June Med. Servs. (cont.)
Laws Challenged 
• Act 98 – Regulates abortion by requiring abortion doctor 

be board certified in family medicine or ob/gyn, or 
residents work under supervision of docs with these 
certifications. 

• Act 593 – Requires cremation or burial of embryonic/fetal 
tissue, with exceptions. 

• Act 196 – Establishes criminal penalties for receiving 
reimbursement for costs of collecting and storing tissue 
from abortions. 

• Act 304 – Extends funding restrictions to contractors 
contracting with clinics to provide abortions.



Alabama Woman’s Ctr. V. Miller –
Amicus

The Alabama fetal demise law at issue sought to
regulate dismemberment abortions. The district court
enjoined Alabama’s dismemberment abortion statute
because it found that known methods of killing
fetuses before dismemberment are potentially riskier,
less reliable, or harder to obtain than dismembering a
living fetus in the first instance. The court
concluded that requiring fetal demise before
dismemberment abortion substantially burdens
abortion rights.



Alabama Woman’s Ctr. V. Miller –
Amicus (cont.)

Attorney General Landry joined twenty-three other 
states as Amici Curiae in support of Alabama. Amici 
argue that the district court failed to analyze the case 
under the correct legal standard which required an 
evaluation of the fetal demise law’s alleged burdens 
in light of the particular interests. General Landry 
supports the position that States have the authority to 
balance medical uncertainties when they regulate 
abortion in the interest of respecting life, and they 
are entitled to judicial deference when they do so. 
Status:  Pending oral arguments U.S. Court of 
Appeals for the 11th Circuit. 



Whole Women’s Health v. Paxton -
Amicus

Amici argue that a Texas abortion regulation that required 
fetal demise before a dismemberment abortion procedure 
furthered the state interest of promoting respect for unborn 
life and did not impose undue burdens on the underlying right 
to abortion. The district court held that the fetal demise law 
placed an undue burden on women seeking an abortion. 
Attorney General Jeff Landry, joined by the Attorneys 
General of twenty-four states and the Governors of three 
states, filed an amicus in support of Texas and reversal of the 
district court’s decision. 
Status:  Active Litigation pending with United States Court of 
Appeals for the Fifth Circuit 



Environmental Law



Air Alliance Houston v. United States 
EPA – Amicus

LA is the lead intervenor in a coalition of 12 states 
and joined by several trade groups in support of the 
EPA in a suit brought challenging the EPA’s so-
called Delay Rule which pushes the implementation 
dates for certain Risk Management Program (RMP) 
rule revisions pertaining to chemical emergency 
response, responder coordination, and emergency 
planning while the EPA considers further changes to 
the revised provisions.



Air Alliance Houston (cont.)
LA takes the position that the delay in
implementation of the RMP amendments is
necessary and appropriate to avoid confusion and
chaos in emergency response where the rule
amendments poorly address industry, state and local
overlay in emergency planning and response and do
not further the stated goals of the Risk Management
Program. Note: There is a companion case,
currently stayed, in which LA is challenging the
underlying RMP rule amendments impacted.
Status: Case argued before D.C. Circuit on March
16, 2018



Markle Interests v. U.S. Fish and 
Wildlife - Amicus

This is an Endangered Species Act case in which LA 
joined a coalition of more than a dozen states in a 
suit challenging 2016 revisions to the Endangered 
Species Act which allowed the federal government 
to designate land as “critical habitat” for an 
endangered species, even if that species did not 
presently live on that land and even if the land failed 
to possess the biological features necessary for the 
survival of the species.  The rule changes represent 
unlawful federal overreach and stand to deprive 
landowners of the right and ability to make full use 
of their land.  



Markle Interests (cont.)

In March 2018, the Department of Justice and the 
coalition of states settled the case with the federal 
government agreeing that the U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service and the National Marine Fisheries Service, 
who promulgated the ESA rules, will be required to 
submit revised rules for public review within 60 
days, with the States retaining the ability to file 
another lawsuit should the new rules perpetuate the 
federal overreach reflected in the 2016 rule changes.

Status: Supreme Court oral argument date TBD.



National Association of Manufacturers 
v. U.S. Dept. of Defense - Amicus

This is a Clean Water Act case pending in federal 
district court in Texas, where Louisiana joined with 
Texas and Mississippi seeking to have the court 
enjoin the effectiveness, implementation, and 
enforcement of the “Clean Water Rule: Definition of 
‘Waters of the United States,’” also referred to as the 
“WOTUS Rule” promulgated in 2015 by the EPA 
and Corps of Engineers. 



National Association of Manufacturers 
(cont.) 

LA recently filed a motion to reopen the case, which
had been stayed while a companion case was being
heard in the U.S. Court of Appeals for the 6th Cir.
Status: On January 22, 2018, the Supreme Court
ruled that the court of appeals is without original
jurisdiction and thereafter the 6th dismissed the
pending petitions for review and dissolved the
nationwide stay of the Rule. LA has joined
Mississippi and Texas in seeking a preliminary
injunction providing for a new nationwide stay of the
WOTUS Rule.



Alabama et al. v. National Marine 
Fisheries Service

This is a marine fisheries case in the U.S.D.C. for the 
Southern District of Alabama. Louisiana has 
intervened in support of the National Marine 
Fisheries Services (NMFS) temporary rule for 
exempted fishing permits (EFPs) allowing the Gulf 
Coast states, including Louisiana, Florida, Alabama, 
Mississippi, and Texas, to set the seasons for Red 
Snapper for the private angler and for-hire 
components landed in their respective state.
Status: The case is stayed while NMFS is preparing a 
new EFP rule, and Louisiana continues to participate 
in the proposed rulemaking as a stakeholder. 



State of Louisiana v. United States
In separate litigation, the AG has sued the Corps of 
Engineers in U.S. District Court for the Western 
District of Louisiana, demanding that it repair land in 
a state conservation area in Vermilion Parish that has 
been eroded by the Gulf Intracoastal Waterway. The 
lawsuit alleges the Corps failed to maintain the 
waterway within the easement granted to the federal 
government by the original owners of the property 
which is causing damage to a 72,000-acre wetlands 
area located a dozen miles inland from the Gulf of 
Mexico. 
Status: Recently filed.



Immigration 



Antonio Lopez-Aguilar v. Marion 
County Sherriff’s Department - Amicus

Petitioner brought a §1983 suit against Marion County 
alleging an illegal detention. Although the County recognized 
that Indiana law required it to cooperate with federal 
immigration detainers, it disagreed with many of those laws 
and agreed to settle the matter by being enjoined from 
enforcing detainers that lack probable cause of a federal 
criminal violation. The court granted a consent decree that 
prohibits Marion County officers from cooperating with 
federal immigration officials’ detainer requests without 
probable cause of a federal criminal violation. As a result, the 
consent decree effectively exempts Marion Country from part 
of Indiana law and allows the County to act in a manner that 
was formerly prohibited by state law.



Antonio Lopez-Aguilar (cont.)

Attorney General Jeff Landry joined Texas and nine other
states as amici curia in support of the State of Indiana. Amici
argues that given the impact on Indiana law, the State has a
unique, direct interest in the consent decree and must be able
to participate by intervention to defend the proper scope and
applicability of its law.

Status: Pending oral argument before United States Court of
Appeals for the Seventh Circuit.



Donald J. Trump v. State of Hawaii -
Amicus 

The district court of Hawaii issued an injunction of the 
President’s Proclamation that suspends the entry into the 
United States of specified classes of nonresident aliens. On 
appeal, Attorney General Jeff Landry joined Texas and 
twelve other states as amici curiae in support of 
Petitioners. Amici argue Congress provided the President 
broad discretion under 8 U.S.C. § 1182(f) to restrict alien 
entry into the United States.

Status:  Pending oral argument before Court of District of 
Columbia.  



Donald J. Trump v. International 
Refugee Assistance Project - Amicus

The district court issued injunctions of the President’s 
Executive Order temporarily suspending the entry of 
specified classes of nonresident aliens and limiting the 
admission of refugees into the United States. Similar to the 
issue presented in Hawaii (see above), Amici argue that the 
Plaintiffs are unable to satisfy the discriminatory-purpose 
analysis because the Court’s precedence established a 
presumption of validity and good faith to facially neutral 
government action, such as the Proclamation. 

Status: The U.S. Supreme Court vacated the judgement and 
remanded the case to the United States Court of Appeals for 
the 9th Circuit with instructions to dismiss as moot, on 
October 10, 2017.



Hargan v. Gaza - Amicus

A seventeen year old unaccompanied and unlawfully present 
minor in the federal government’s legal custody, living in a 
government-funded shelter in Texas seeks to have an 
abortion.  Plaintiff claims she has a constitutionally protected 
decision to terminate her pregnancy despite her unlawful 
presence in the United States and lack of substantial ties 
therein. The Plaintiff seeks a temporary restraining order 
effectively declaring that the U.S. Constitution confers on 
unlawfully present aliens the right to an elective abortion that 
is not medically necessary—even when they have virtually no 
ties to this country. Until this litigation, no court had ever 
before recognized such broad rights for unlawfully present 
aliens with virtually no connections to the country.



Hargan (cont.)

Attorney General Landry joined ten other states, including 
Texas and South Carolina, as Amici Curaie in support of the 
federal government.  Attorney General Landry supports the 
position that the Supreme Court should deny Plaintiff’s 
application for a temporary restraining order.  

Status: Pending argument before the District Court for the 
District of Columbia. Date TBD.



REDISTRICTING



Abbott v. Perez - Amicus

The U.S.D.C. (Western District) struck down the 2011 Texas
Legislature’s redistricting plan on the basis that it violated the
Voting Rights Act (“VRA”). The district court identified
certain changes that needed to be made to the 2011 Plan. The
2013 Texas Legislature adopted the district court’s own
redistricting plan, but the district court found that the 2013
legislature possessed a racially discriminatory purpose in
violate of section 2 of the VRA and the Fourteenth
Amendment. The district court concluded that the 2013
Legislature’s plan “purposefully maintained the intentional
discrimination” contained in the 2011 Plan because certain
districts where the court found violations remain unchanged.



Abbott v. Perez (cont.)
Attorney General Jeff Landry, with five other states joining,
argued as amici curiae in support of appellants that the
district court ruling be stayed pending appellate review.
The district court’s ruling, challenging the sovereignty of
States to hold their own elections and destabilizing elections
throughout the State of Texas, has widespread implications
for States entering the 2018 election cycle and the coming
2020 redistricting cycle. It undermines the ability of States to
rely in good faith on the plain language of a district court
opinion.

Status: The Supreme Court consolidated both Perez cases
(17-586) and (17-626). Oral Argument is set for April 24,
2018.



United States Supreme Court 



Robert McCoy v. Louisiana, 
Supreme Court, No. 16-8255

Is it unconstitutional for a lawyer to use a
concession strategy over his client’s objection
when the defense is the most effective means
of sparing the client’s life and when the
defense demanded by the client would violate
the lawyer’s legal and ethical obligations?



Robert McCoy v. Louisiana



Solicitor General Contact 

Visit AG website for a copy of the 
Solicitor General Briefs

www.ag.state.la.us

Elizabeth Murrill
Solicitor General
(225) 326-6700



Attorney General Opinions as a means 
of deterring litigation



Opinion Request Procedure:

• Requests for opinions must be in the form of a letter
and addressed to the Attorney General, Post Office
Box 94005, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804. Facsimile
transmissions should be sent to 225-326-6098.

• Requests must contain a clear, concise question of law
and a complete statement of the facts describing the
situation out of which the legal issues arise.



Importance of the 
Attorney General Opinions:

• Public entities rely on them.
• They may deter litigation.
• The press covers them in news stories.
• Parties cite them in legal briefs.
• Courts discuss accuracy of Attorney General
Opinions.



The End. 


